
  
 
 
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 21, 2012 
5:30 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
 
TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

5:30 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

February 7, 2012, Regular Meeting 
February 7, 2012, Closed Session 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 21, 2012 AGENDA  11 
5:35 4  PROPOSED CONTRACT WITH TRAIL DYNAMICS FOR 

CONSTRUCTION OF A BIKE SKILLS AREA AT ROCKY KNOB 
PARK 

MR. ERIC WOOLRIDGE 13 

5:40 5  SANITATION DEPARTMENT RECYCLING CENTER’S GRANT 
APPLICATION REQUEST FOR PURCHASE OF FORKLIFT 

MS. LISA DOTY 25 

5:45 6  BUDGET AMENDMENTS MS. MARGARET PIERCE 33 

5:50 7  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. USDA’s Proposed Lease Request for the Location of 

the Watauga/Avery County Service Center  
B. Proposed Resolution Authorizing Conveyance of 

Surplus Property by Donation 
C. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
37 

 
117 

 
119 

6:00 8  PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE 
PROPOSED WATAUGA COUNTY GATED COMMUNITY 
ORDINANCE 

MR. JOE FURMAN 125 

6:15 9  PUBLIC COMMENT  130 
 7:15 10  ADJOURN   

  



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
February 7, 2012, Regular Meeting 
February 7, 2012, Closed Session  
 

 
 

 
 
  

022112 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2012 

 
 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
February 7, 2012, at 8:00 A.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
  PRESENT: Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
    Vince Gable, Vice-Chairman 
    David Blust, Commissioner 
    Jim Deal, Commissioner 
    Tim Futrelle, Commissioner 

Stacy C. Eggers, IV, County Attorney 
    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 8:05 A.M. 
 
Commissioner Blust opened the meeting with a prayer and Vice-Chairman Gable led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the January 17, 2012, regular and 
closed session minutes, and the January 27, 2012, special meeting minutes. 
 
Chairman Miller stated that the following addition (indicated in bold) was requested to be added 
to the January 17, 2012, regular meeting minutes: 
 
“County Manager Geouque stated that two terms on the Watauga County Tourism Development 
Authority (TDA) were set to expire at the end of February 2012.  The TDA requested that Mr. 
Rob Holton and Mr. Mike Hall each be reappointed to three-year terms.  Both Mr. Holton and 
Mr. Hall were willing to continue to serve if so appointed.  Chairman Miller nominated Ms. 
Kim Rogers and Mr. Jim Neustadt for consideration of appointment as well.” 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the January 17, 
2012, regular meeting minutes as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
 
 
 

DRAFT 
022112 BCC Meeting

2



Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the January 17, 
2012, closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the January 27, 2012, 
special meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the February 7, 2012, agenda. 
 
County Manager Geouque requested to add a Department of Transportation request to support 
preliminary engineering services for a secondary access to Appalachian State University via 
Homespun Hills Road. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the February 7, 2012, 
agenda as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

NCDOT REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF SMALL 
CONSTRUCTION FUNDS FOR PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR A 
SECONDARY ACCESS TO THE ASU CAMPUS. 
Mr. Ivan Dishman, District Engineer with the North Carolina Department of Transportation, 
(NCDOT), presented a request for the Board to approve a resolution in support of preliminary 
engineering services needed for consideration of a secondary access to the campus of 
Appalachian State University (ASU).  North Carolina General Statues required that a resolution 
of support be obtained from the local governments in the project area when requested funds 
exceed $150,000. 
 
Ms. Susan McCracken, ASU, stated that the secondary access was being considered for safety 
purposes as it would allow an additional ingress to and egress from campus.  Homespun Hills 
Road would realize improvements, as well, if the access was developed.  Ms. McCraken stated 
that the Town of Boone tabled further discussions regarding the matter until their February 17, 
2012, meeting. 
 
Mr. Dishman stated that, at this point, the preliminary engineering study would show the costs, 
environmental impacts, and benefits of installing the secondary access. 
 

022112 BCC Meeting

3



Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to adopt a resolution in support of 
preliminary engineering services for a potential secondary access to ASU campus through the 
Homespun Hills Road area to be forwarded to the North Carolina Department of Transportation. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PROPOSED INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR APPALACHIAN REGIONAL LIBRARY 
Ms. Molly Westmoreland with the Appalachian Regional Library System presented a revised 
Interlocal Agreement as prepared by the County Managers and Attorneys of Ashe, Watauga and 
Wilkes.  The Governance Committee of the Appalachian Regional Library Board had 
recommended approval of the agreement. 
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that the agreement included provisions that property purchased 
by the individual Counties would remain the property of said County.  The County Attorney 
concluded that the agreement sufficiently covered the County in that the financial obligation of 
Watauga County would be limited to debt approved by Watauga County. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the agreement as 
presented by Ms. Westmoreland. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PROPOSED PROCLAMATION DESIGNATING FEBRUARY 2012 AS SPAY/NEUTER 
MONTH 
Ms. Lynn Northup with the Watauga Humane Society presented a proposed proclamation 
declaring February 2012 as “Spay/Neuter Month.” 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to adopt the proclamation as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PRESENTATION OF SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER’S ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL 
REPORT 
Mr. Brian Ingraham, Area Director/CEO, and Ms. Lisa Slusher, CFO, with Smoky Mountain 
Center presented the Center’s Annual Audited Financial Statements as required by Statute.  Ms. 
Slusher stated that Smoky Mountain was given an unqualified opinion which was a clean 
opinion, the highest that could be given.  Ms. Slusher stated that there was one finding in regards 
to Federal and State rewards. 
 

This report was given as information only; therefore, no action was required nor taken. 

022112 BCC Meeting

4



REQUEST TO APPOINT THE HOME & COMMUNITY CARE BLOCK GRANT 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE AND LEAD AGENCY 
Ms. Angie Boitnotte, Project on Aging Director, stated that each year the Board was required to 
appoint an advisory committee and a lead agency to make recommendations on how to best 
expend the County’s allocation from Home and Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) 
funds.  These funds were previously established by the Older American’s Act and are 
administered by the North Carolina Division of Aging. 
 
Ms. Boitnotte recommended the following for appointment to the H&CCBG Advisory 
Committee for Fiscal Year 2013:  Mr. Tim Futrelle representing the Board of Commissioners, 
Ms. Anita Davie representing High Country Council of Governments, Mr. Jim Atkinson 
representing the Department of Social Services, Mr. Mike Birkmire representing Independent 
Living, Ms. Linda Bretz representing ARHCS Home Health, Mr. Murray Hawkinson 
representing Daymark Recovery Services, Ms. Margie Mansure representing Cooperative 
Extension, Ms. Christy Pruess representing Smoky Mountain Center, Ms. Pam Rush representing 
Appalachian District Health Department, Ms. Sara Shoemaker representing Hospice; and the 
following Senior Citizen representatives:  Ms. Pat Coley (Senior Tar Heel Legislature (STHL) 
Delegate), Dr. Ed Rosenberg (STHL Alternate), Ms. Becky Council, Ms. Gail Hawkinson, Mr. 
Dick Oehser, Mr. Bob Parker, Dr. Milton “Bunk” Spann, and Ms. Betty Wyse. 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to appoint himself, Ms. Anita 
Davie, Mr. Jim Atkinson, Mr. Mike Birkmire, Ms. Linda Bretz, Mr. Murray Hawkinson, Ms. 
Margie Mansure, Ms. Christy Pruess, Ms. Pam Rush, Ms. Sara Shoemaker, Ms. Pat Coley, Dr. 
Ed Rosenberg, Ms. Becky Council, Ms. Gail Hawkinson, Mr. Dick Oehser, Mr. Bob Parker, Dr. 
Milton “Bunk” Spann, and Ms. Betty Wyse to the Fiscal Year 2013 Home and Community Care 
Block Grant Advisory Committee. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Ms. Boitnotte recommended the Watauga County Project on Aging be appointed as the Lead 
Agency. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to appoint the Watauga 
County Project on Aging as the Lead Agency for the Home and Community Care Block Grant 
funds for Fiscal Year 2013. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

MOWING CONTRACT BID AWARD REQUEST 
Mr. Robert Marsh presented a proposed agreement with Estate Maintenance Company to extend 
the contract for mowing services for an additional two (2) year term at the current rate of 
$77,000.  Estate Maintenance was awarded the contract for mowing services as the lowest bid in 

022112 BCC Meeting

5



2009.  Mr. Marsh stated that over the past two and half years excellent service had been provided 
with no complaints received. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the contract extension 
as prepared by the County Attorney in an amount not to exceed $77,000 for an additional two (2) 
year period. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS 

A.  Proposed Language Access Plan for CDBG Scattered Site Housing Project 

Mr. Joe Furman presented a proposed Language Access Plan which was required to satisfy the 
Community Investment and Assistance for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
program.  This Plan was only applicable to the ongoing CDBG Scattered Site Housing Program 
and failure to adopt it could result in CDBG funds being frozen.  This Plan was to expire upon 
close-out of the current Program; however, the need for adoption of a new plan was anticipated 
upon acceptance of the next CDBG funding cycle for 2013. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to adopt the Language Access 
Plan for the Community Development Block Grant Scattered Site Housing Program as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

B.  Proposed 2012 Hazardous Materials Emergency Planning Grant Agreement 

Mr. Furman presented a Hazardous Materials Emergency Planning Grant in the amount of 
$5,000 which required no County match.  The exercise scenario was to be an accident at an ASU 
lab with the release of hazardous materials.  The table-top exercise was proposed to be conducted 
on February 22, 2012 with the full scale exercise to occur on March 30, 2012. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to accept the Hazardous 
Materials Emergency Planning Grant in the amount of $5,000 with no local match required as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

C.  Brookshire Wetlands Proposal 

Mr. Furman stated that Carroll and Carroll had purchased a 148 acre tract of land located on Old 
Highway 421 South, currently marketed for mixed use development.  Blue Ridge Development 
Group (BRDG) was hired to review wetlands and jurisdictional streams located on the property.  
Should the property be developed for mixed use, significant impacts would occur to the wetlands 
and jurisdictional streams.  Federal law required the impacts to be mitigated.  One possible 

022112 BCC Meeting

6



option being suggested was to establish a mitigation “bank” on property owned by the County 
located on Brookshire Road. 
 
The option would enhance, expand, and maintain the wetlands and jurisdictional streams on the 
County-owned Brookshire Road property.  In return for County support, BRDG was proposing 
to construct the greenway along the South Fork of the New River for the entire length of County-
owned property.  The County was under consideration for a grant to construct this greenway 
which required a 50% match.  The County’s match would be “in-kind” in the form of staff time 
used constructing the greenway while the grant funds would pay for the materials.  It was 
uncertain as to the County’s likelihood in being awarded the grant; however, accepting the 
BRDG proposal would allow the greenway to be constructed with the ability to leverage the 
grant funds if awarded.  Staff did not believe the proposal for the wetlands mitigation would 
affect any future development at the Brookshire Complex with the exception of potentially 
relocating a proposed volley ball court. 
 
The County Attorney stated that, if the wetlands were damaged by natural disaster, the County 
would not be required to restore them; however, the County would be responsible for restoring 
the Greenway.  Easements would be needed for both the Federal Government and BRDG for 
access to the wetlands. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to approve Blue Ridge 
Development Group’s wetlands proposal, contingent upon the County Attorney’s review and 
with the understanding that, if the County was awarded the grant for Greenway construction, 
BRDG agreed to make a decision at that point regarding their involvement in the project which 
would allow the County to make an informed decision regarding the acceptance of grant funds. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

TAX MATTERS  

A. Monthly Collections Report 

Tax Administrator Kelvin Byrd presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of 
January 2012.  This report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was 
required. 

B. Refunds and Releases 

Mr. Byrd presented the following Refunds and Releases for January 2012 for Board approval: 
 

TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK 
 

Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the Refunds and 
Releases Report for January 2012, as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

022112 BCC Meeting

7



MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A.  Proposed Resolution Supporting Road Improvements and Upgrades to Roby Greene Road 
(SR 1331B) 

County Manager Geouque presented a proposed resolution in support of road improvements and 
upgrades to Roby Greene Road. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to adopt the resolution as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Chairman Miller directed staff to forward a copy of the resolution to the North Carolina 
Department of Transportation Board and staff. 

B.  Proposed Resolution Establishing the Register of Deeds Salary 

County Manager Geouque stated that, per Statute, prior to the filing period for the upcoming 
elections, the Board must establish the salary for the Register of Deeds in order for filing fees to 
be determined.  A proposed resolution was presented designating the salary as $49,663 which 
was the current entry level amount on the County’s pay plan. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to adopt the resolution to 
establish the Register of Deeds salary as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

C.  Tentative Agenda for Annual Pre-Budget Retreat 

County Manager Geouque presented a draft agenda for the Board’s retreat which was scheduled 
for February 24 and 25.  The agenda may change prior to the retreat based on input from the 
Board or additional items being requested for consideration. 

D.  Incident Command System Classes 

County Manager Geouque stated that Mr. Seth Norris had requested the Board establish a time 
for training regarding the Incident Command System.  The training required approximately 2 
hours and was for elected officials and municipal and county management.  There was no cost to 
the County for holding the training; however, Federal funding, in the case of natural disasters, 
was tied to the training. 
 
By consensus, the Board agreed to schedule the Incident Command System training on March 
28, 2012, from 4:00 P.M. to 6:00 P.M. 
 
 

022112 BCC Meeting

8



E.  Boards & Commissions 

County Manager Geouque stated that two terms on the Watauga County Tourism Development 
Authority (WCTDA) were set to expire at the end of February 2012.  Mr. Rob Holton, Mr. Mike 
Hall, Ms. Kim Rogers, and Mr. Jim Neustadt had been nominated to fill these terms. 
 
Written ballots were distributed, completed, and given to the Clerk who tallied them and 
announced that Ms. Kim Rogers and Mr. Jim Neustadt received the greatest number of votes, 
thereby filling the two, three-year, terms on the Watauga County Tourism Development 
Authority. 
 
Also, per TDA Bylaws, the TDA Chairman was due for appointment by the Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to appoint Mr. Matt Vincent as 
the Chairman of the Watauga County Tourism Development Authority. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

F.  Announcements 

County Manager Geouque announced that the NCACC was requesting the County’s federal 
issues of statewide importance and the review of the 2011 Congressional issues for North 
Carolina. 
 
County Manager Geouque announced that the Watauga Drug Treatment Court Team invited 
Board members to observe an upcoming session of Drug Treatment Court.  Upcoming sessions 
were scheduled on Wednesday, February 15, 2012, at 3:30 P.M. and Wednesday, February 29, 
2012, at 3:30 P.M. in the small courtroom. 
 
County Manager Geouque announced that the Watauga County Public Library invited the Board 
to a dinner on Tuesday, February 21, 2012, from 4:00 P.M. to 5:00 P.M. to learn about the 
library, economic development, technological updates, and more. 
 
County Manager Geouque announced that the Annual Pre-Budget Retreat was scheduled for 
February 24 (12:00 P.M.–6:00 P.M.) & February 25, 2012, (9:00 A.M.–12:00 P.M.). 
 
County Manager Geouque announced that the 2012 Watauga County Economic Development 
Summit was scheduled for Wednesday, March 7, 2012, from 1:00–5:00 P.M. at the Blowing 
Rock Art and History Museum in Downtown Blowing Rock. 
 
County Manager Geouque announced that a public hearing was scheduled for Tuesday, 
February 21, 2012, at 6:00 P.M. to allow citizen comment on the proposed Watauga County 
Gated Community Ordinance. 

022112 BCC Meeting

9



PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 9:10 A.M., Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to resume the open meeting at 
9:42 A.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

ADJOURN 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
9:42 A.M. 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

022112 BCC Meeting

10



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 21, 2012, AGENDA 
 

 
  

022112 BCC Meeting

11



Blank Page 
 
 
  

022112 BCC Meeting

12



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PROPOSED CONTRACT WITH TRAIL DYNAMICS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A BIKE 
SKILLS AREA AT ROCKY KNOB PARK 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
At the January 17, 2012, Board meeting, the Watauga County Tourism Development Authority 
and County Attorney were authorized to negotiate a contract with Trail Dynamics for an amount 
not to exceed $35,000 with the Tourism Development Authority fully funding the project at no 
cost to Watauga County.  Once prepared, the contract was to be presented to the Board of 
Commissioners for final approval. 
 
Board action is requested to approve the contract as presented and prepared by the County 
Attorney.   
 
 
 
  

022112 BCC Meeting

13



MEMO 
 
To: Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
From: Eric Woolridge, WCTDA Tourism Planner 
  
Date:  February 14, 2012 
 
Re:   Acceptance of Bike Skills Area contract with Trail Dynamics 
 
 
As part of the current Watauga County Tourism Development Authority (WCTDA) 
general budget and specific budget for Rocky Knob Park, the WCTDA has allocated 
$35,000 for the development of a bike skills area at Rocky Knob Park. With the 
fulfillment of this project, along with the playground and shelter construction, the county 
will fulfill its obligation of the $500,000 Parks and Recreation Trust Fund grant. 
 
With the assistance of the county attorney, the WCTDA released a Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ) for constructing the bike skills area in December 2011. On January 
17 the Board of Commissioners determined Trail Dynamics to be the most qualified 
contractor. Also, the Board directed TDA staff and the county attorney to prepare a 
contract with Trail Dynamics and return to the Board of Commissioners for approval. 
Attached is the contract that has been approved by both the county attorney and Trail 
Dynamics. 
 
Recommendation 

• Accept contract as prepared by the county attorney 

022112 BCC Meeting

14



 
 1 

This instrument drawn by: Eggers, Eggers, Eggers and Eggers, PLLC, 
Attorneys at Law, Boone, North Carolina 28607 

 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

CONTRACT 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this the 21st day of February, 2012, by and 
between Trail Dynamics, LLC (hereinafter referred to as “Trail Dynamics, LLC”), and Watauga 
County (hereinafter referred to as “County”); 

 
The County, being the owner of a 185 acre tract of land located in Watauga County 

known as Rocky Knob Park located near the town of Boone, County of Watauga, North Carolina, 
upon which it is desirous of constructing a bike skills facility within an approximately 50 yard by 
50 yard wooded area, as more particularly described in the request for proposals issued by 
Watauga County for this project and the Statement of Qualifications and Proposal submitted by 
Trail Dynamics for this project; 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, Trail Dynamics, LLC is a North Carolina limited liability company with its 
principal place of business in Cedar Mountain, North Carolina which specializes in the design, 
development, and management of trails, and bike park facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Watauga County is the Owner of 185 wooded acres located on Scenic Byway 
421 just east of the Town of Boone, which is known as Rocky Knob Park; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Watauga County Tourism Development Authority (WCTDA) is working to 
make the Boone Area a top outdoor recreation destination in the United States; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed park plans call for the construction of a bike skills facility within 
an approximately minimum 50 yard by 50 yard wooden area consistent with the environment 
and other facilities at Rocky Knob Park; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Trail Dynamics, LLC was determined to be the most qualified bidder by the 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners at their meeting on January 17, 2012 for this project 
at $35,000.00, which has been determined by Watauga County to be a reasonable price for the 
work to be performed; and  

 

022112 BCC Meeting

15



 
 2 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this contract is for Trail Dynamics, LLC to work on this project 
to completion and to represent and advocate for the County’s interests among subcontractors, 
contractors, volunteers, and suppliers in construction of the bike skills facility. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the County and Trail Dynamics, LLC, in mutual consideration of the 
terms and conditions set forth herein, and upon the recitals set forth above, the parties hereby 
agree as follows: 
 

1. Trail Dynamics, LLC shall fully construct and install the bike skills facility in accordance 
with the bid specifications and proposal, not inconsistent with the terms contained 
herein.  Trail Dynamics, LLC shall work on this project to completion and represent and 
advocate for the County’s interests among subcontractors, contractors, volunteers, and 
suppliers in construction of the bike skills facility.  Prior to beginning work, Trail 
Dynamics, LLC shall provide drawings and maps to Eric Woolridge of how it intends to 
incorporate the following necessary components using site specific features which take 
advantage of the unique landscape features present in the proposed skills area. These 
plans shall be to the satisfaction of Eric Woolridge. 
 
At a minimum, the bike skills facility will include distinctively different lines for different 
difficulty levels and shall include the following: 
 
A. A gravity fed PBJ (pump, berms, and jump) trail.  This flow and rhythm trail will take 

off from the saddle under the power line and tie in low in the trail system to take 
advantage of as much gravity-fed trail as possible.  This trail will have wider spec 
(5-6 feet in width) to allow for faster speeds and bigger jumps and table tops; all 
downhill, and thus a true gravity-fed experience. 

 
B. A mini skills area located in the saddle area and power-line corridor.  This would 

serve as a warm-up for the larger progression-based skills area. 
 
C. A larger progression-based skills area located between the power-line corridor and 

Lower Knob Trail.  This area would feature several levels of difficulty and slightly 
higher consequence for failure as the different routes step up in challenge.  
Difficulty levels will be clearly marked and risk will be open and obvious and 
adhering to best practices as accepted by bike park builders.  Access will be 
controlled through one entry point and access trail.  Additional warning signage will 
be developed and installed by Trail Dynamics, LLC.  Trail Dynamics will also 
recommend/design and install a kiosk and place recommended warning signs and 
other information such as a schematic drawing of the area.  In addition, Trail 
Dynamics shall provide to Watauga County a schematic drawing of the area showing 
recommended places for display of warning signs and other information. 

 

022112 BCC Meeting

16



 
 3 

Overall risk strategy will be developed and implemented during the design and 
development phase.  Risk management components shall include: controlled access 
into larger skills area with proper warning signage, design/built wood structures using 
best practices including high texture rough cut wood for traction, appropriately built 
trail features based on difficulty level, and training for on-going management of skills 
area.  Trail Dynamics shall additionally work on the access road leading from landfill 
area to the saddle as this is a key access route for emergency vehicles in the event of an 
accident in the skills area or on the Upper Knob trails.  On the access road, Trail 
Dynamics shall install broad based dips and shall improve the long-term sustainability of 
this important emergency access corridor as part of a risk-management plan. 
 
The entire construction project, inclusive of the materials to be supplied by Trail 
Dynamics, LLC shall be for a sum not to exceed thirty-five thousand ($35,000.00) dollars, 
which shall include all fees and expenses of Trail Dynamics, LLC, all materials necessary 
to build the bike skills facility to completion, and all necessary design services and 
engineering to the satisfaction of the County. Only materials of the highest quality shall 
be supplied or used in construction, and all lumber used shall be custom ordered rough 
cut (CCA treated) and shall not be stock lumber.  Framing material for wood features 
shall consist of 3 x 10 rough cut, timber round poles of various sizes (depending on 
spans).  All decking for elevated structures shall be stronger rough cut true dimension 
2 x 6 boards (for traction and a more rustic look).  Tread width for raised timber 
structures shall vary according to trail feature difficulty, height off of ground, and fall 
considerations.  If railings are needed, the design and implementation of such railings 
shall be executed in such a way that the railing itself does not become a hazard to riders 
(railing width and height shall be specifically calculated to mitigate risk).  All features of 
the bike skills facility shall follow commonly accepted (by PTBA bike park builders across 
the US) best practices.  Best practices include: use of rough cut decking for better 
traction of mountain bike tires, beveled edges on decking to reduce cutting type injuries 
in cases of falls, appropriate deck tread widths commensurate with feature height and 
fall zone considerations, etc.  Trail Dynamics, LLC agrees to exercise a fiduciary duty to 
County to see that all materials used are of highest quality, and that all work performed 
by subcontractors, agents, volunteers, or employees is performed in a workmanlike 
fashion, free of defect, and in a manner so as to meet the specifications provided for in 
the request for proposals and proposal bid submission.  Trail Dynamics, LLC agrees to 
reject and to immediately notify county if any materials supplied by any entity or 
individual, or if any work performed by any subcontractor, agent, employee, volunteer, 
or professional is not in keeping with the highest standards of workmanlike 
performance and to exercise a fiduciary duty with respect to ensuring that County’s best 
interests in this project are protected.  The price above includes the costs of any and all 
additional consultants, subcontractors, or others on behalf of Trail Dynamics, LLC, 
including but not limited to all costs associated with any work performed by licensed NC 
engineers and excavators who shall act as subcontractors of Trail Dynamics, LLC. 

022112 BCC Meeting

17



 
 4 

 
2. No work shall commence or proceed on additional features other than the bike skills 

facility as set forth herein unless such work is authorized in writing and signed by the 
County and Trail Dynamics, LLC which shall include a detailed statement of the additions 
to be performed and the amount of time to be spent on the additional features.  In no 
event shall the total project costs, inclusive of any change orders, exceed the total sum 
of thirty-five thousand dollars ($35,000.00). 

 
3. Watauga County shall pay Trail Dynamics, LLC $5,000.00 upon the execution of this 

contract for all materials, including lumber, hardware, and other needed items.  
Watauga Country shall pay Trail Dynamics, LLC $4,000.00, upon Eric Woolridge’s 
approval of the planning and design work.  The planning and design phase shall include 
MOB, lodging, food, and three to five days of field work.  Upon completion of the PBJ 
trail to Eric Woolridge’s satisfaction, county shall pay $3,000.00.  Upon completion of 
the Mini-Skills area to Eric Woolridge’s satisfaction, county shall pay $2,000.00.  For 
follow up and post-construction work with BAC and TDA staff on risk management, 
training on risk management protocol, including training of Eric Woolridge and 
volunteers on needed safety inspections, signage program, and to-scale detailed 
diagram of the signage program to Eric Woolridge’s satisfaction, county shall pay 
$1000.00.  Upon completion of the total job, including the Main Skills area, to Eric 
Woolridge’s satisfaction, county shall pay $20,000.00. 

 
 Trail Dynamics, LLC shall pay all employees, agents, and subcontractors, including but 

not limited to excavators and licensed NC engineers for work performed on this project. 
 
4. Trail Dynamics, LLC shall contract the bike skills facility consistent with the following 

requirements: 
 
A. The bike skills facility must provide at least 50 yard by 50 yard of activity area for 

different levels of challenges for children and adults of different ages and skill levels. 
 
B. The bike skills facility must be constructed of ladder bridges, skinnies, log rides, rock 

drops and rollers, flow and rhythm pumping apparatus and must make use of rock 
and custom ordered rough cut wood and other materials appropriate for a bike skills 
facility.  The bike skills facility must be consistent with best practices in the industry 
and comply with all required safety regulations for public bike skills facilities used by 
children and adults of varying skill levels, ages, and abilities.  The bike skills facility 
must also be created in such a way that it allows for minimum maintenance and 
repair by the County. 

 
C. The bike skills facility must include risk management strategy including appropriate 

signage, risk assessment, a detailed map for placement of appropriate signage, and 

022112 BCC Meeting

18



 
 5 

training for volunteers and county employees in risk management and safety 
inspections.   

 
D. Trail Dynamics, LLC shall, in addition to the work set forth herein, inspect the 

finished work at least yearly at an annual fee of no more than $800.00, and shall 
prepare a report which addresses the structural analysis of the bike skills facility and 
any adjustments necessary for the events for at least three years. 

 
5. Watauga County designates Eric Woolridge as the Project Manager for this project on 

behalf of the County.  As such, only Eric Woolridge or his duly appointed successor as 
named by the Watauga County Board of Commissioners, may act to sign any change 
orders relating to this project.  However, in no event does Eric Woolridge have 
authority to increase the total contract price, including change orders, to exceed the 
total sum of thirty-five thousand dollars ($35,000.00), without prior written approval 
from the Watauga County Manager. 

 
6. Trail Dynamics, LLC shall submit records of payment for materials and payments to 

subcontractors for the work described herein on a monthly basis to Watauga County on 
a monthly basis to Margaret Pierce, the Watauga County Finance Officer, at 
margaret.pierce@watgov.org, with a copy of the invoice to Eric Woolridge at 
eric@exploreboonearea.com.  Payment shall be due and payable upon the date of 
signed approval by Eric Woolridge on behalf of Watauga County.  At all times relevant 
to this contract, Trail Dynamics, LLC shall keep and maintain records for construction 
units and other daily work for comparison with the County’s records.   

 
7. Trail Dynamics, LLC agrees to complete this project by May 15, 2013.  It is the 

responsibility of Trail Dynamics, LLC to complete this project as scheduled and time is of 
the essence in the performance of this contract.  If for any reason it appears that this 
project will be delayed, Trail Dynamics, LLC shall notify the County, in writing, as soon as 
possible with an explanation of the reason(s) for the delay.  If the delay(s) is approved 
by the County, the schedule may be modified and the agreement amended.  Both 
failure to give the required notification of delay and failure to meet the completion 
deadline shall constitute failure to perform in accordance with the terms of this 
agreement and the agreement may be terminated in accordance with this agreement. 

 
8. This Contract is entered into in Watauga County, North Carolina, and shall be construed 

in accordance with the laws of the State of North Carolina.  The parties hereby agree 
that Watauga County, North Carolina is an appropriate venue for the resolution of any 
disputes arising as a result of this contract.  If a dispute arises out of or relates to the 
Contract which cannot be resolved informally between the parties, the parties agree to 
conduct pre-litigation mediation, consistent with the rules of Mediated Settlement 

022112 BCC Meeting

19

mailto:margaret.pierce@watgov.org
mailto:eric@exploreboonearea.com


 
 6 

Conferences for the Superior Court of North Carolina, prior to the filing of any suit 
arising out of this Contract. 

 
9. Watauga County shall cooperate with Trail Dynamics, LLC to coordinate the completion 

of this project, and shall specifically coordinate all meetings with County staff, 
interested associations, and the public involvement on this project. 

 
10. In addition to the terms set forth above, Trail Dynamics, LLC shall: 

 
A. Consult with the County to ascertain the requirements of the project and shall 

confirm such requirements to the County. 
 
B. Prepare and file the required documents for the approval of governmental 

authorities having jurisdiction over the project for purposes of obtaining any 
necessary construction permits. 

 
C. Establish and conduct a regular schedule of meetings between Trail Dynamics, LLC 

and the County.  Such meetings shall be maintained throughout the entire 
construction period and shall be for the primary purpose of assessing the progress of 
the work and recommending such remedial actions as are necessary to maintain 
progress and to complete the project within the contract time.   

 
D. Process and approve, or take other appropriate action in respect of, progress 

schedules, shop drawings and other required submissions promptly. 
 
E. Prepare change orders as required, and have such change orders properly executed 

and approved before beginning work on account thereof. 
 
F. Submit all necessary documentation involving compliance with minority business 

utilization commitments to the County relating to any subcontractors utilized by 
Trail Dynamics, LLC. 

 
G. Provide general administration of the performance of volunteer management, 

construction contracts, including inspection and continuous liaison of the work to 
ensure compliance with plans and specifications, which inspection shall be by 
qualified and mutually agreed upon representatives of Trail Dynamics, LLC as often 
as necessary to ensure compliance with plans and specifications. 

 
H. Assist the County in risk management and signage program implementation, 

scheduling and conducting final inspection of the project, and coordinating the date 
for such inspection with the County. 

 

022112 BCC Meeting

20



 
 7 

I. Assemble written guarantees, affidavits, manuals of inspection for operation, if 
applicable, and other required and closing papers; obtain certificates of final 
completion, certificates of compliance from all consultants whose seal appear on the 
plans and specifications if required by G.S. 133-1.1; final certificates for payment; 
and set date for beginning of the guarantee period, forwarding all closing papers to 
the County. 

 
11. Trail Dynamics, LLC agrees that its representatives on the construction project shall be 

qualified by training and experience to make decisions and interpretations of plans and 
specifications.  All such decisions and interpretations shall be binding upon Trail 
Dynamics, LLC as if made by it; all such decisions shall be confirmed in writing at the 
earliest reasonable date, with copies to the County, conditioned that such decisions and 
interpretations shall not modify adversely the requirements of the contract documents; 
Trail Dynamics, LLC’s representatives shall be replaced promptly and without protest at 
the request of the County, if in the opinion of the County, such representatives are 
either negligent or unqualified to perform their duties. 

 
12. Upon completion of the project Trail Dynamics, LLC shall deliver the Aas built@ 

drawings to the County, and Trail Dynamics, LLC warrants such plans shall conform to 
the final project as constructed.  

 
13. Trail Dynamics, LLC shall be responsible for all administrative costs related to the 

project, including, but not limited to, the following: 
 

A. Providing required number of plans and specifications for review for all agencies 
involved in the project; 

 
B. Paying all cost of handling, mailing, etc., of plans and specifications to any 

sub-contractors of Trail Dynamics, LLC; 
 
C. Paying for all telephone calls, travel, administrative overhead cost and any other 

expense incurred by Trail Dynamics, LLC; 
 
D. Provide and maintain, at Trail Dynamics, LLC’s expense, such insurance as will 

protect Trail Dynamics, LLC and the County from claims under the Workman=s 
Compensation Act and such comprehensive general liability insurance as will protect 
the County and Trail Dynamics, LLC from all claims for bodily injury, death, or 
property damage which may arise from the performance of Trail Dynamics, LLC or by 
Trail Dynamics, LLC’s employees during the course of Trail Dynamics, LLC’s functions 
and services required under this Agreement, such insurance being in amounts of at 
least one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) for general liability insurance per 
occurrence and workers compensation coverage of at least five hundred thousand 

022112 BCC Meeting

21



 
 8 

dollars ($500,000.00) per occurrence.  While onsite and utilizing volunteer labor, 
Trail Dynamics, LLC shall also require volunteers to sign a waiver of any and all 
liability as to Trail Dynamics, LLC and Watauga County. Said waiver shall be provided 
by Watauga County. Trail Dynamics, LLC shall also ensure that no minors shall act as 
volunteers in construction of this project.  Trail Dynamics, LLC shall insure all 
materials and the premises and structure that are the subject of this contract, that 
is, the bike skills facility, until completion of the project and final payment by 
County.  Trail Dynamics, LLC shall list Watauga County as an additional insured for 
the duration of this work.  Copies of these policies shall be provided Watauga 
County’s project manager, Eric Woolridge, and Margaret Pierce, County Finance 
Director. 

 
14. All materials provided by Trail Dynamics, LLC, or any other party shall be free from liens, 

encumbrances, and claims of any individual, partnership, corporation, or entity.  Trail 
Dynamics, LLC hereby waives any and all claims of liens related to this project on behalf 
of itself or its subcontractors. 

 
15. Time is of the essence in the completion of this project. 
 
16. Trail Dynamics, LLC agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County, of any and all 

liability arising from any breach of contract or any other action related to, or incidental 
to, the performance of this contract. 

 
17. Trail Dynamics, LLC warrants the materials used in this project to be of highest quality 

and fit and proper for the purposes which they are to be used.  Where specifications 
are general in nature, all materials are to be equal to or exceed those specified.  Trail 
Dynamics, LLC further warrants that all work will be completed in a workmanlike 
manner according to the highest standards and guaranteed to be free from defect due 
to inferior installation or construction.  Trail Dynamics, LLC further warrants that the 
facility shall be free from structural defects and defects in workmanship under normal 
use and service, for a period of two years after the date of installation and acceptance 
by the County. 

 
18. Watauga County shall not be responsible for incidental or consequential damages as a 

result of any breach of this contract, or for any Acts of God, fire, riot, war, civil unrest, or 
impossibility beyond the control of the County. 

 
19. Records of Trail Dynamics, LLC’s personnel, consultants, additional services and 

expenses pertaining to the project, and records of accounts between the County and 
other parties shall be kept on a generally recognized account basis, and all such records 
shall be available to the County or its authorized representative at mutually convenient 
times. 

022112 BCC Meeting

22



 
 9 

 
20. All designs, drawings, specifications, design calculations, notes and other works 

developed in the performance of this contract shall become the sole property of 
Watauga County. 

 
21. In event of termination, Trail Dynamics, LLC shall receive payment for services rendered 

prior to the receipt of written termination notice from the County.  Any work done by 
Trail Dynamics, LLC and any materials delivered by Trail Dynamics, LLC or any other 
supplier prior to termination shall become the property of the County. 

 
22. In the event notices are to be sent to either party under this agreement, such notices 

will be sent to the following addresses by regular mail, with adequate postage attached 
thereto: 

 
Watauga County   Trail Dynamics, LLC 
Attn:  County Manager  c/o Woody Keen, President 
814 West King St., Ste. 205  PO Box 664 
Boone, NC  28607   Cedar Mountain, NC 28718 

 
23. Trail Dynamics, LLC may contract with subcontractors for the completion of its work.  A 

copy of each subcontracting party=s agreement shall be provided to Watauga County.  
Trail Dynamics, LLC agrees that it shall be responsible for the work of any volunteers and 
its subcontractors as though it were performing each and every act itself in which a 
volunteer or subcontractor engages, whether authorized by Trail Dynamics, LLC or 
otherwise. 

 
24. The County and Trail Dynamics, LLC each binds themselves, their partners, successors, 

legal representatives and assigns to the other party to this agreement and to the 
partners, successors, legal representatives and assigns of such other party in respect to 
all covenants of this agreement.  Neither the County nor Trail Dynamics, LLC shall 
assign, sublet or transfer its interest in this agreement without the written consent of 
the other. 

 
25. This agreement, together with the attached Exhibits, Exhibit A (Request for Proposals) 

and Exhibit B (Proposal of Trail Dynamics, LLC), represents the entire and integrated 
agreement, between the County and Trail Dynamics, LLC and supersedes all prior 
negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral.  This agreement 
may be amended only by written contract.  To the extent anything contained in either 
of the Exhibits conflicts with any provision of this contract, the terms of this contract 
shall control over the terms of the Exhibits.  The Request for Proposals shall control 
over the Proposal of Trail Dynamics, LLC Journeys. 

 

022112 BCC Meeting

23



 
 10 

26. If any provision of this contract is unenforceable, invalid, or illegal, the remaining 
provisions will continue in full force and effect. 

 
27. In the event that any incorporated documents conflict with the terms and conditions of 

this contract, the terms and conditions set forth in this document shall control. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the County and Trail Dynamics, LLC have executed this Agreement, 
the day and year first above written. 
 
 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA TRAIL DYNAMICS, LLC. 
 
 
By:   By:   

Nathan A. Miller, Chairman  Woody Keen, President 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners  Authorized Representative 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
By:   

Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
By:   Date:   

Margaret Pierce, Finance Officer 
Watauga County 

022112 BCC Meeting

24



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

SANITATION DEPARTMENT RECYCLING CENTER’S GRANT APPLICATION 
REQUEST FOR PURCHASE OF FORKLIFT 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Lisa Doty, Recycling Coordinator, will request authorization to apply for a grant from the 
North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources to purchase a new forklift to 
assist with the County’s recycling effort.  If awarded, the new forklift will replace the 1991 
model currently in use. 
 
The initial quote for replacement of the equipment is $34,051 with a County match of $5,675.16.  
However, if the Board approves applying for the grant, staff will solicit additional bids for the 
forklift.  Additional revenue will be recognized in the sale of fixed assets to cover the County 
match.   
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board for authorization to submit the grant application. 
 
 
  

022112 BCC Meeting

25



1 

 Watauga County Sanitation 
Recycling Office 

Memo 
To: Deron Geouque 
From: Lisa Doty, Recycling Coordinator 

CC: JV Potter 

Date: February 14, 2012 

Re: Request for Permission to Apply for Grant to Purchase  a Forklift 

This is a request to apply for grant funds from the North Carolina Department of Environment 
and Natural Resources “2012 Community Waste Reduction and Recycling Grant” to purchase a 
new forklift for the recycling program operation.  The current forklift is a 1991 Toyota forklift 
with 9,415 hours.  The forklift is used in the daily operation of the recycling program. 

 
Total cost of forklift:     $34,051.00 (see attached quote) 
Total proposed grant request:  $28,375.84 
County Match:                $ 5,675.16 
 

Distributions from the $2 per ton tip fee tax may be used to cover cash match requirements. 
 

         

022112 BCC Meeting

26



 

Vesco Toyotalift 
921 18th Street Pl NW 

Hickory, NC 28601-3347 
Phone: 828-322-2105 

Fax: 828-322-3998 
www.vescoforklifts.com 

 
 
 
 
February 14, 2012 
 
 
Watauga County Sanitation 
336 Landfill Rd 
Boone, NC 28607-9568 
 
 
 
We are pleased to submit the attached Toyota Diesel Powered Lift Truck quotation for your 
review and approval. 
 
As an authorized Toyota dealer, Vesco Toyotalift can provide the high-quality equipment and 
service you would expect from the worlds leading lift truck manufacturer.  This quotation 
reflects our understanding of your lift truck needs, combined with a careful configuration of the 
appropriate equipment and options. 
 
To place your order, please sign and date the quotation where indicated and return to me.  If you 
have any questions, please contact me.  
 
Thank you for your interest in our company and our Toyota products.  We look forward to being 
of valuable service to you for your material handling needs. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Chuck Adams 
Vice President 
Phone:  828-322-2105 
Fax:      828-322-3998 
E-mail: chuckadams@vescoforklifts.com 
 
encl 

022112 BCC Meeting

27



- 2 - 

 

Vesco Toyotalift 
921 18th Street Pl NW 

Hickory, NC 28601-3347 
Phone: 828-322-2105 

Fax: 828-322-3998 
www.vescoforklifts.com 

 
 
To: Watauga County Sanitation  Date: February 14, 2012 
 336 Landfill Rd  Our Ref: 40251969 
 Boone, NC 28607-9568 
Attn: J B Potter     
 
 
 
We respectfully submit this quotation for the following NEW Toyota Diesel Powered Lift Truck (1 each): 
 

 

Toyota...Proud to be the world's #1 lift truck manufacturer! 
 

TOYOTA MODEL 8FDU30, Diesel Lift Truck, quality engineered with the following specification: 
• Pneumatic Tires 
• Diesel Powered 
 

SYSTEM OF ACTIVE STABILITY™ (SAS)  
Toyota's industry exclusive System of Active Stability (SAS) 
helps reduce lift truck instability by electronically monitoring 
and controlling various functions of the lift truck.  

• Active Control Rear Stabilizer: Various lift truck 
sensors simultaneously monitor vehicle speed, fork 
height, load weight, and vehicle yaw (or angular 
acceleration).  Should the operator inadvertently place 
the truck in a potentially unstable lateral condition, the 
sensors trigger the SAS controller to activate the Active 
Control Rear Stabilizer to help reduce the likelihood of a 
lateral tip over.  (Note: Does not apply to dual drive 
configured models)  

• Active Mast Function Controller (AMC): Should the 
operator inadvertently place the lift truck in a potentially unstable longitudinal condition, these same sensors 
trigger the SAS controller to activate the AMC, which limits forward tilt and/or tilt back speed to help reduce 
the likelihood of a longitudinal tip over.  

 
AUTOMATIC FORK LEVELING  
Toyota's Automatic Fork Leveling feature increases productivity while reducing damage with a push of a button.  By 
depressing the Automatic Fork Leveling button during forward tilt, operators are quickly and easily able to level the 
forks.  
 
TOYOTA ENGINE  
Engineered to the highest standards of quality, durability, and reliability, your Toyota 8-Series lift truck is outfitted 
with the industry's most respected industrial engines.  
 
ULTRA COMFORT 4-WAY ADJUSTABLE, FULL SUSPENSION SEAT WITH NON CINCHING SEAT BELT  
Operator comfort is taken to a new level with Toyota's Ultra Comfort 4-way adjustable, full suspension vinyl seat.  
With lumbar, weight, tilt, and almost 6 inches of fore/aft adjustability, your operators will be comfortable and 
productive throughout their shift.  Standard Non-cinching seat belts provide additional comfort in applications 
requiring frequent reverse travel.  

 
Photo may portray optional equipment not included in your 
quotation. 

 

022112 BCC Meeting

28



Watauga County Sanitation 
February 14, 2012 

40251969 
 

- 3 - 

 
Mast 
 

 
3-Stage (FSV) mast with full free lift provides excellent visibility to load and fork tips, while 
providing smooth, quiet and consistent operation.  Mast specifications: 

Maximum Fork Height - 187" 
Overall Lowered Height -  89.2"   (Overhead Guard Height - 85.50") 
Free Lift - 41.2" with standard Load Backrest 
 

 
Lifting Capacity 
 

 
Base Model Capacity - 6,000 lbs. @ 24" load center 
Actual Capacity, based on quoted specifications, - 5,670 lbs. @  24" load center to 187" MFH 
 
Actual capacity ratings stated above are based on standard features, options, and attachments available 
through Toyota at the time of quoting. Non-standard features, options, and attachments may affect actual 
capacity ratings. Please contact your Toyota sales representative for additional information. 
 

Tilt 
 

6 degrees forward and 6 degrees backwards 
 

Carriage 
 

ITA Hook-type, 42" Carriage 
 

Forks 
 

Forks 48" x 5" x 1.8" Class III 
 

Load Backrest 
 

48" High Load Backrest 
 

Attachments 
 

Cascade 42" Hang-On Sideshifter (Includes 3rd Function Internal Hosing) 
 

Speeds 
 

Travel Speed:  12.10 mph.     Lift Speed:  98 fpm. 
 

Engine 
 

Toyota 2.5L 1DZ-III Industrial Diesel Engine 
152 cubic inch displacement, 4 cylinder, overhead valve (OHV) 
Net Torque Rating (SAE ft-lb):  116 @ 2500 rpm 
Net Horsepower Rating (SAE HP):  55 @ 2500 rpm 
 

Transmission 
 

Automatic Transmission 
1 speed forward, 1 speed reverse standard. 
 

Steering 
 

Hydrostatic Power Steering 
 

Wheels and 
Tires 
 

Front Tires: 28x9-15-12PR (Pneumatic) 
Rear Tires: 6.50-10-10PR (Pneumatic) 
 

Additional 
Equipment 
 

Strobe Light (Yellow) 
Radiator Screen 
Back-up Alarm 
Transmission Protection Plate (Skid Plate) 
 Steel Cab (6° Back Tilt) 
Solid Pneumatic Tires - Front 
Rear Solid Pneumatic Tires - Including Rear Side Ring Wheels 
 
 

Other 
Outstanding 

• Operator Presence Sensing System (OPSS) 
• Fully Stamped Steel Side Panels 

022112 BCC Meeting

29



Watauga County Sanitation 
February 14, 2012 

40251969 
 

- 4 - 

Toyota Features 
 

• Overly Spacious Leg Room 
• Weather Protected Electrical System 
• Unparalleled Fork Tip Visibility 
• Foot Activated Park Brake with High Mount Release 
• Adjustable Headlights with Guards 
• Electronic Shift Control 
• 7” Cyclone Air Cleaner 
• Fully Insulated Stamped Steel Engine Hood 
• Dual Operator Assist Grips 
• Oversized Cup Holder and Amenity Tray 
• Heavy Duty, Non-Slip Rubber Floor Mat 
• Automotive Style Headlight Switch 
Some standard items listed within this quotation may be replaced or altered due to optional equipment. 
 

 
Warranty 
 

12 Months or 2,000 hours whichever occurs first: Basic 
24 Months or 4,000 hours whichever occurs first: Powertrain 
 
Warranty coverage for non-standard option components will be covered by the manufacturer of 
that component and not covered under the Toyota lift truck standard or powertrain warranty. 
 
We offer a Toyota factory authorized warranty on all new Toyota Industrial Equipment. 
 

 
Investment Price-Toyota Model 8FDU30 as specified above: $34,051 Each 

  _____________________ 
 Net Price: (plus tax) 

 
$34,051 

 
Each 

 
Financing and 
Maintenance 
 
 

A broad range of competitive and flexible financing options are available through Toyota. 
Financing requires credit approval. Terms and conditions are subject to change.  
 
In addition, Full Maintenance and Planned Maintenance programs are available.  

 

 
Terms and 
Conditions 

Payment: Net 10 days / Cash or Financed 
Delivery: Will advise at time of order. 
F.O.B.: Delivered 
Prices are exclusive of any sales or use taxes now in force or which may be made effective in the 
future by any federal, state, or local governments. 
Lease offerings subject to credit approval 
Performance and specifications stated are based on specific testing and operating conditions. 
Actual performance and specifications may vary based on application, option configuration, 
operating conditions, and environmental factors. Some options and configurations may void UL. 
Conditions subject to change to those in effect at time of delivery. 
Your signature on this proposal constitutes an order. 
Please contact your Toyota sales representative for additional information. 
 

 
California 
Users 

When operated in California, any offroad diesel vehicle may be subject to the California Air 
Resources Board In-Use Off-Road Diesel Vehicle Regulation. It therefore could be subject to 

022112 BCC Meeting

30



Watauga County Sanitation 
February 14, 2012 

40251969 
 

- 5 - 

retrofit or accelerated turnover requirements to reduce emissions of air pollutants. For more 
information, please visit the California Air Resources Board website at 
http://www.arb.ca.gov/msprog/ordiesel/ordiesel.htm. 

  

 
 
Sincerely, Accepted: 
Vesco Toyotalift Watauga County Sanitation 
 
  Cash Price $___________  
  Financed Payment $___________ Per Month  ______Months   

 
By: ____________________________________ By: ______________________________________ 
 
Name: Chuck Adams Name: ______________________________________ 
 
Title: Vice President Title: ______________________________________ 
 
  Date: ______________________________________ 

022112 BCC Meeting

31



Blank Page 
 
 

022112 BCC Meeting

32



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, will review budget amendments as included in your 
packet. 
 
Board approval is requested. 
  

022112 BCC Meeting

33



 
 

                  W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 

814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607 - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
         
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Deron Geouque, County Manager 
FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 
SUBJECT: Budget Amendments-FY 2011/12 
DATE:  February 21, 2012 
 
The following budget amendments require approval of the Watauga County Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
103300-345000  Elderly/Disabled Trans Grant  $4,000 
105550-431301  Elderly/Disabled Trans Grant-POA $2,500 
104500-469846  Elderly/Disabled Trans Grant-WO   $5,000 
104500-469845  Elderly/Disabled Trans Grant-NRBH   $1,500 
143300-345000  Elderly/Disabled Trans Grant    $4,000 
145310-469845  Elderly/ Disabled Trans Grant-DSS $4,000 
 
Based on spending within programs for the first 7 months, the ROAP grant recipients have 
requested the funding be reallocated to meet existing service levels. This will transfer some 
additional funding to POA and DSS to allow services to continue at reduced levels. 
 
Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
103300-349602  Rural Center EDC Grant    $44,843 
104920-463002  EDC Jobs Creation Grant  $44,843 
 
Per Board action 12-20-11; to recognize the grant with the NC Rural Center Economic 
Development Program For Building Reuse and Restoration. Local match is provided by Joe 
Furman’s administrative time. 
 
Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
143839-389000  Administrative Cost Reimbursements  $101,416 
145480-438800  Crisis Intervention Payment  $81,515 
145410-440002  Low Income Home Energy Asst. $19,901 
 
To recognize change in funding allocations from the state for two energy programs and 
administrative funds. 
 
 
 

022112 BCC Meeting

34



 
 

 
 
 
 
Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
283102-312110  Tax Revenue Deep Gap Fire Dist   $16,900 
284340-469910  Deep Gap Fire Dist   $16,900 
283102-312109  Tax Revenue Meat Camp Fire Dist   $16,000 
284340-469909  Meat Camp Fire Dist   $16,000 
283102-312108  Tax Revenue Shawneehaw Fire Dist   $5,600 
284340-469908  Shawneehaw Fire Dist  $5,600 
283102-312107  Tax Revenue Cove Creek Fire Dist   $9,200 
284340-469907  Cove Creek Fire Dist   $9,200 
283102-312106  Tax Revenue Zionville Fire Dist   $3,300 
284340-469906  Zionville Fire Dist   $3,300 
283102-312105  Tax Revenue St Simmons Fire Dist   $11,500 
284340-469905  St Simmons Fire Dist   $11,500 
283102-312104  Tax Revenue Beaver Dam Fire Dist   $3,000 
284340-469904  Beaver Dam Fire Dist   $3,000 
283102-312101  Tax Revenue Foscoe Fire Dist   $12,000 
284340-469901  Foscoe Fire Dist   $12,000 
243102-312101  Tax Revenue Foscoe Service Dist   $3,700 
244340-469901  Foscoe Service Dist   $3,700 
243102-312105  Tax Revenue Beech Mtn Service Dist  $400 
244340-469998  Beech Mtn Service Dist  $400 
243102-312107  Tax Revenue Cove Creek Service Dist  $10 
244340-469907  Cove Creek Service Dist  $10 
243102-312100  Tax Revenue Boone Rural Fire Dist   $41,200 
244340-469905  Boone Rural Fire Dist   $41,200 
 
To recognize additional fire tax district revenues and payments due to fire departments. 
 
Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
103300-343314  Hazardous Materials Training Grant   $5,000 
104330-449902  HazMat Training Exercise Grant $5,000 
 
Per Board action 2-7-12; to recognize the grant with NC Emergency Response Commission for 
Hazardous Materials Emergency Planning. There is no County match required. 
 
 
 
 
 

022112 BCC Meeting

35



Blank Page 
 
 

022112 BCC Meeting

36



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A.  USDA’s Proposed Lease Request for the Location of the Watauga/ Avery County Service 
Center 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
At the January 17, 2012, Board meeting, approval was given to renew the USDA lease for office 
space at the existing rate of $10.00 per square foot for a ten (10) year term.  Upon additional 
conversations with USDA personnel, the proposal originally sent to the County did not allow for 
a simple renewal but rather required the County to submit a “Request for Lease Proposal” as if it 
were a new lease.  As such, the new lease includes requirements for improvements and services, 
at the County’s expense, that were not included as part of the initial lease agreement.  The 
additional costs are included in Mr. Marsh’s memo.   
 
The previous lease did not cover the County’s cost for utilities, maintenance and janitorial 
services.  Based on the new lease, the County will request reimbursement for the office space 
and services provided to the USDA.  The actual space, currently leased, is 2,200 square feet, not 
the 1,718 square feet figure referenced at the January meeting.  The square footage may change, 
depending on USDA’s measurement and calculation, which may reduce the lease amount.  The 
current market rate, not including utilities and maintenance services, is $10 to $16 per square 
foot. 
 
Staff recommends authorizing the submission of a “Request for Lease Proposal” to the USDA in 
the amount of $18.47 per square foot, for a total annual amount of $40,624, based upon office 
space, utilities, maintenance services, and improvements as required by the USDA.   
 
Board direction is requested. 
 
 
 
 
  

022112 BCC Meeting

37



                 W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 

                                969 West King St.,  Boone, NC  28607  -  Phone (828) 264-1430 
                                                                                                    Fax     (828) 264-1473 

 

 

TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
FROM:  Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director 
 
SUBJECT: FSA Office, Agricultural Services Center, 971 West King Street 
 
DATE:  February 15, 2012 
 
 
BACKGROUND 

 In 1996 FSA ask the Commissioners to build an addition of approximately 2,000 square feet onto the 
Agricultural Services Center.  The Commissioners hired Mr. Bill Dixon, Appalachian Architecture to 
provide design services for the new addition.  Bids for the project were received and a Bid Award was 
made to Hunter Construction for $322,940 at the August 4, 1997 Commissioners’ Meeting.  Construction 
was completed in 1998.  The County agreed to lease the office space to FSA for $10.00 per square foot 
for a five year term.  In addition, the County agreed to provide cleaning, utilities and maintenance 
services.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

The current lease for the Watauga/Avery FSA Office, located inside the Agricultural Services Center, 
expires this year.  We have received a renewal contract in the form of a “Request for Lease Proposal” 
from the USDA Office in Washington, DC.  The Proposal includes requirements for improvements and 
services that were not included as part of the initial lease agreement.  Staff recommends the new annual 
lease rate to be $18.47 per square based upon the costs detailed below. 

 

022112 BCC Meeting

38



Farm Services Agency 
Cost Survey 

February 15, 2012 
 

Prepared by:  Robert Marsh 
 
 

Required Tenant improvements for the term of the 10 year lease: 
 
  2012 Improvements – Data and Telephone Equipment room $ 13,800 
  
  2017 Maintenance – Painting and Carpet   $   7,500 
 
  TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS     $ 21,300 
 
Annual Operating Expenses 
 
 Custodial service, maintenance and utilities (10 years)   $120,937 
 
  TOTAL EXPENSES      $142,237 
 
 
Market rate for office space - $12/sf x 2,200 sf x 10 years   $264,000 
 
  TOTAL COST OF 10 YEAR LEASE    $406,237 
 
 
Annual payment to Watauga County    $40,624 
 
Annual Square Foot Rate     $ 18.47    
 

 

 

 

022112 BCC Meeting

39



022112 BCC Meeting

40



022112 BCC Meeting

41



022112 BCC Meeting

42



022112 BCC Meeting

43



022112 BCC Meeting

44



022112 BCC Meeting

45



022112 BCC Meeting

46



022112 BCC Meeting

47



022112 BCC Meeting

48



022112 BCC Meeting

49



022112 BCC Meeting

50



022112 BCC Meeting

51



022112 BCC Meeting

52



022112 BCC Meeting

53



022112 BCC Meeting

54



022112 BCC Meeting

55



022112 BCC Meeting

56



022112 BCC Meeting

57



022112 BCC Meeting

58



022112 BCC Meeting

59



022112 BCC Meeting

60



022112 BCC Meeting

61



022112 BCC Meeting

62



022112 BCC Meeting

63



022112 BCC Meeting

64



022112 BCC Meeting

65



022112 BCC Meeting

66



022112 BCC Meeting

67



022112 BCC Meeting

68



022112 BCC Meeting

69



022112 BCC Meeting

70



022112 BCC Meeting

71



022112 BCC Meeting

72



022112 BCC Meeting

73



022112 BCC Meeting

74



022112 BCC Meeting

75



022112 BCC Meeting

76



022112 BCC Meeting

77



022112 BCC Meeting

78



022112 BCC Meeting

79



022112 BCC Meeting

80



022112 BCC Meeting

81



022112 BCC Meeting

82



022112 BCC Meeting

83



022112 BCC Meeting

84



022112 BCC Meeting

85



022112 BCC Meeting

86



022112 BCC Meeting

87



022112 BCC Meeting

88



022112 BCC Meeting

89



022112 BCC Meeting

90



022112 BCC Meeting

91



022112 BCC Meeting

92



022112 BCC Meeting

93



022112 BCC Meeting

94



022112 BCC Meeting

95



022112 BCC Meeting

96



022112 BCC Meeting

97



022112 BCC Meeting

98



022112 BCC Meeting

99



022112 BCC Meeting

100



022112 BCC Meeting

101



022112 BCC Meeting

102



022112 BCC Meeting

103



022112 BCC Meeting

104



022112 BCC Meeting

105



022112 BCC Meeting

106



022112 BCC Meeting

107



022112 BCC Meeting

108



022112 BCC Meeting

109



022112 BCC Meeting

110



022112 BCC Meeting

111



022112 BCC Meeting

112



022112 BCC Meeting

113



022112 BCC Meeting

114



022112 BCC Meeting

115



Blank Page 
 
 

022112 BCC Meeting

116



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

B.  Proposed Resolution Authorizing Conveyance of Surplus Property by Donation 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
At the January 17, 2012, Board meeting, direction was given to staff to advertise the conveyance 
of surplus property by donation to the Boone Optimist Club, a local non-profit organization.  The 
advertisement has taken place and, therefore, adoption of a resolution authorizing the donation of 
the home side bleachers at the old Watauga High School to Boone Optimist Club is required to 
complete the process. 
 
Board action is requested to adopt the resolution as presented.   
 
  

022112 BCC Meeting

117



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE  
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF SURPLUS PROPERTY BY DONATION  
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Watauga along with the Watauga County Board of Education 
recently replaced the Watauga County High School with a newly constructed facility; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the property, buildings, furnishings, and equipment left at the old school site 
have been surplused with many of those items having been sold through GovDeals.com 
auctions; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Boone Optimist Club, a local non-profit organization, requested the 
donation of the sports bleachers located on the home side of the football stadium at the old 
high school property for use at their fields of which the County’s Parks and Recreation 
Department utilizes for organized sporting events;  and  
 
 WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A-280 permits a County to donate any 
personal property it deems to be surplus, obsolete, or unused to an incorporated nonprofit 
organization according to the procedures prescribed in 160A-280(a). 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
hereby authorizes the donation of the following described surplus property to the Boone 
Optimist Club:  sports arena bleachers currently located at the old Watauga High School. 
 
 ADOPTED this the 21st day of February, 2012, pursuant to the provisions of North 
Carolina General Statute 160A-280. 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
       Watauga County Board of Commissioners   
ATTEST: 
  
____________________________     (SEAL)  
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

DRAFT 
022112 BCC Meeting

118



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

C.  Announcements 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Annual Pre-Budget Retreat is scheduled for Friday, February 24 (12:00 P.M. to 6:00 P.M.) 
& Saturday, February 25, 2012, (9:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M.) in the Commissioners’ Board Room. 
 
The Watauga Drug Treatment Court Team has invited Board members to observe a session of 
Drug Treatment Court on Wednesday, February 29, 2012, at 3:30 P.M. in the small courtroom. 
 
An Intergovernmental Retreat is scheduled for Monday, March 5, 2012, from 5:00 P.M. to 7:00 
P.M., on the 5th floor of the ASU Athletics Center, overlooking the stadium.  The meeting will 
include a presentation on local government finance from Ms. Madeleine Henley with North 
Carolina League of Municipalities (NCLM).  
 
The 2012 Watauga County Economic Development Summit is scheduled for Wednesday, 
March 7, 2012, from 1:00 to 5:00 P.M. at the Blowing Rock Art and History Museum in 
Downtown Blowing Rock. 
 
An Incident Command System (ICS) Overview for Executives/Senior Officials training is 
scheduled on March 28, 2012, from 4:00 P.M. to 6:00 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room.  
  

022112 BCC Meeting

119



022112 BCC Meeting

120



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Phil Trew <ptrew@regiond.org>
Sent: Thursday, February 16, 2012 11:33 AM
To: Randy Feierabend; Scott Hildebran; Greg Young; Ed Evans; Greg Lovins; Deron.Geouque; Susan 

McCracken
Cc: Anita.Fogle; Kim Brown; Freida Vanallen; Jennifer Broderick; Sharon Greene
Subject: March 5 retreat info.

Sorry for the delay, but it has taken awhile to organize the March 5 retreat.  We're set for March 5, 5-7 pm, at the ASU Athletics 
Center, 5th floor, overlooking the stadium.  Thanks to ASU for lining up the venue, and providing parking assistance. 
  
We will have a presentation on local government finance from Madeleine Henley with NCLM.  NCACC staff were unavailable, but 
Madeleine will try to touch on County issues (Medicaid, etc.).   
  
Since we only have one presenter, do you all want to have Craig Hughes from our office give a 15-minute status report on the 
Watauga Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) process?  Goals and Objectives have been developed, and the NCDOT has 
run a traffic projection model to identify deficiencies in the highway network.  Next step will be recommendations to address the 
deficiencies.  Your boards will all be asked to adopt the CTP when complete.  Let me know if you want/don't want to have this on 
the agenda. 
  
I'll send agendas out on February 27.  Please let your boards know the date so they can plan on attending. 
  
Phil 
Phillip Trew, AICP 
Director of Planning and Development 
High Country Council of Governments 
468 New Market Boulevard 
Boone, NC 28607 
828-265-5434, ext. 121 
828-265-5439 (fax) 
ptrew@regiond.org 

022112 BCC Meeting

121



 

 
 
 
 
 

SAVE THE DATE!!!! 
 
 

2012 Watauga County Economic Development Summit 
Blowing Rock Art and History Museum 

Downtown Blowing Rock 
March 7, 2012 

 
1:00 PM – 5:00 PM 

 
 

Agenda: 
 

Overview of the Watauga Economy 
Presentation of EDC’s Targeted Marketing Analysis 

Significant Drivers of Economic Growth 
Challenges and Opportunities Facing Local Organizations 

Where to Focus Economic Development Efforts 
Areas and Opportunities for Increased Cooperation 

 
Sponsored By 

 
BREMCO 

New River Light & Power 
Advantage West 

 
 

Plenty of Parking on Site 
 

Snow Date: March 21, 2012 
 

For additional information contact: 
 

 Watauga County Economic Development Office  
 

828-264-3082 
 
 
 

022112 BCC Meeting

122



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Seth Norris <norrissa@appstate.edu>
Sent: Thursday, February 09, 2012 4:11 PM
To: greg.young@townofboone.net; brtownmanager@townofblowing.com; 

townmanager@sevendevils.net; manager@townofbeechmountain.com
Cc: Deron.Geouque; Anita.Fogle; Steve.Sudderth; jimmy.isaacs@townofboone.net; 

Dana.Crawford@townofboone.net; 'Kent Graham'; ebrown303@bellsouth.net; 
policechief@sevendevils.net; chief@townofbeechmountain.com; 
rpudney@beechmountainvfd.org

Subject: ICS Workshop for Executives/Senior Officials

Good afternoon, 
 
Last fall Watauga County Emergency Management hosted a workshop for local government managers and elected official to 
discuss the emergency management program in North Carolina. During that workshop, several attendees discussed the 
implications that the National Incident Management System (NIMS) and Incident Command System (ICS) have on local 
government.  Although the federal government expects local governments to comply with NIMS, the content is relatively 
unfamiliar. I am offering a workshop to provide you and your elected officials with information pertaining to NIMS, ICS, and how 
these concepts apply to us locally.  
 
On Wednesday, March 28, 2012 from 4 p.m. – 6 p.m. you and your council members are invited to attend the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency’s G402 Incident Command System (ICS) Overview for Executives/Senior Officials. Among other 
topics, the course objectives include: 

 Describe the Incident Command System (ICS). 
 Describe the various ways ICS can be applied. 
 Define the role of an Executive/Senior Official relative to the ICS.  
 Describe the major responsibilities of an Executive/ Senior Official as related to an incident. 
 Demonstrate basic familiarity with ICS terminology. 
 Describe the basic organization of ICS and know the functional responsibilities of the Command and General 

Staffs. 
 Describe issues that influence incident complexity and the tools available to analyze complexity. 
 Describe the differences between on‐incident ICS organizations and activities and the activities accomplished by 

Emergency Operations Centers (EOCs), Area Commands, and Multiagency Coordination Systems (MACS). 
 Explain the administrative, logistical, financial, and reporting implications of large incident operations. 
 Describe the sources of information regarding the incident and how to access them. 
 Describe types of agency(ies) policies and guidelines that influence management of incident or event activities. 

 
Of course, we will also discuss the local context and how these regulations apply. Many of your police officers, firefighters, and 
others have completed ICS courses, some even committing 40 hours or more to the training. This 2‐hour workshop provides you 
with a practical overview. 
 
The target audience includes managers, council members, fire chiefs, and police chiefs. I recommend that you bring a team from 
your municipality. The training is scheduled in the Watauga County Board Room, 814 West King Street.   
 
Please RSVP no later than Wednesday, March 14, 2012. You are welcome to ask any questions prior to the workshop be 
emailing me (norrissa@appstate.edu) or calling my cell phone at (828) 773‐4609. 
 
I look forward to hearing from you soon.  
 
Thank you, 
Seth Norris, MPA, CEM 
Director 

022112 BCC Meeting

123



2

Environmental Health, Safety, & Emergency Management 
Appalachian State University 
828.262.8081 [o] 
828.406.7610 [m] 
norrissa@appstate.edu 
 

022112 BCC Meeting

124



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE PROPOSED WATAUGA 
COUNTY GATED COMMUNITY ORDINANCE 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
A public hearing has been scheduled to allow citizen comment on the proposed Watauga County 
Gated Community Ordinance.  The purpose of the ordinance is to establish rules and standards 
for the installation of electronic access gates for gated communities.   
 
Board direction is requested at the close of the public hearing. 
 
  

022112 BCC Meeting

125



022112 BCC Meeting

126



100.03  REQUIREMENTS  
New and existing, when applicable, gated communities shall comply with the 
following requirements: 
A.  All streets in the gated community must be private streets.  
B.  The location of the gate(s) shall comply with Section 100.04 of this ordinance  
and the North Carolina State Fire Prevention Code, as applicable.  
C.  The gates shall be maintained in working order and inspected as needed.   
D.  Gates pre-existing to the adoption of this ordinance shall not be affected by 
this ordinance provided they are maintained and in working order. If such gates 
are replaced or modified, they shall conform to the requirements of Sections 
100.04, parts C through K, of this ordinance and the North Carolina State Fire 
Prevention Code as applicable.  
 E.  Applicants shall adhere to section 100.05 below regarding the process for 
obtaining approval for gates.  
 
100.04  GATE DEVELOPMENT SPECIFICS  
A.  Entrance ways and exit ways shall be a minimum of twenty (20) feet 
unobstructed width.  When separated by medians, posts or other obstructions, 
each entrance and exit lane shall be provided with a minimum unobstructed 
width of twelve (12) feet.  There  shall also be at least 40’ measured from the gate 
to the ultimate right-of-way so the fire truck or emergency vehicle will not block 
the adjacent public right-of-way.  
B.  The ingress/egress area at the gate location shall be separated by a 
minimum 5’ landscape island.  
C.  It shall be determined if the gates are to be manual or electrical in operation. 
All electrical vehicular  gates shall be provided with access control using a Radio 
Transceiver for public safety and authorized users.  This transceiver will allow 
emergency vehicles to open the gate from a mobile or portable radio, and must 
be pre-approved by Watauga County.  
 D.  All electrical vehicular gates shall be provided with a fail-open device in the 
event of power failures unless secondary power is provide by battery back-up or 
generator.  During a power failure, the gates will open and remain open.  These 
devices should restore the gate(s) to the closed position after the power is 
restored.  Any residential gated communities consisting of three (3) or less 
dwelling units are not subject to this requirement.  
E.  Gates need to be opened for appropriate personnel to enter the community 
during an emergency.  A  fire service recognized/approved dual key activating 
switch or padlock shall be installed to allow emergency personnel access 
through vehicular gates.  
F.  An approved dual key lock box containing cards, keys, pass codes and 
operating instructions shall be provided at each entrance gate.  
G.  Gates shall be designed so that when fully opened do not obstruct the path 
of travel for vehicles or pedestrians, whether emergency and non-emergency. 
Gates shall remain fully open during an emergency event, when activated by 
responding agency, until reset.  A ‘Hold Open’ code must be included in design 
and functioning of the gate. 

022112 BCC Meeting

127



H.  If there are two or more gates in any single development, all gates shall be 
operated in the same fashion. 
I.  Gate activation shall not be altered or placed out of service without prior 
notification to the Watauga County Fire Marshal’s Office, Watauga County 
Planning and Inspections Department and the Local Fire Department.  
J.  Each entrance gate shall be provided with an “override” feature to allow the 
gate(s) to remain open so that multiple fire apparatus can enter without having to 
wait for intermittent opening of the gate(s). 
K.  Each entrance gate shall be equipped with a manual override feature so as to 
permit opening during power failures or other emergency. 
 
100.05  APPLICATION AND APPROVAL PROCESS  
A.  The applicant shall submit a detailed plan, including but not limited to, 
scaled drawings showing the  location of the gates, turn radius, dimensions of 
the gates, pavement, sidewalks, curbs, etc.  Information such as topography 
lines, vegetation, site triangles, etc. shall also be included with the submittal.  
B.  The applicant shall submit these plans for review by the Planning & 
Inspections Department, who shall forward the plans to the Sheriff’s 
Department, Fire Marshal’s Office, EMS, and Local Fire Department for 
approval.   
C.   All applicable permits for the construction of gates shall be obtained from 
Watauga County Planning and Inspections.  The Department of Planning & 
Inspections shall verify approval by the agencies listed in Section 100.05 (b) of 
the gate plan prior to issuance of a permit.   
D.  All property owners shall notify the Watauga County E911 Department of any 
gate access code changes prior to such changes taking effect. 
E.  All gated communities applying for a permit to install a gate shall 
acknowledge that if the affected properties gate fails to operate in its intended 
operational capacity, and such failure results in damage to the gate or 
constitutes the responding emergency agency to alter normal entrance 
procedures, the responding agency, mutual aid departments and Watauga 
County shall not be held liable for damages incurred. 
 
100.06  MAINTENANCE  
Gates subject to this ordinance shall be kept in their original working order and 
shall be repaired and/or replaced in the event they are disabled and/or 
damaged.  It shall not be the responsibility of the County to maintain these 
gates.  Gates subject to this ordinance shall be monitored annually by the Local 
Fire Department and verified by the Watauga County Fire Marshal’s Office every 
three (3) years of their operation or as deemed appropriate by the Watauga 
County Fire Marshal’s Office.   
 
100.07  MODIFICATIONS 
Any gate (new or existing) altered outside the scope of their original installation 
and/or permitting, will be considered a modification.  Notification and plans for 
modification shall be submitted to the Watauga County Office of Planning and 

022112 BCC Meeting

128



Inspections for review and decision upon compliance with this ordinance. 
 
100.08 VIOLATIONS  
A.  It shall be unlawful for any person to construct, install, or maintain any 
blocking device, such as a gate or any other type of barrier without first review 
and approval by Watauga County.  
B.  If it is found that a gated community is in violation of this ordinance, the 
property owner(s) shall be notified of said violation in writing by the Watauga 
County Fire Marshal’s Office.  Failure to remedy the violation within seven (7) 
business days shall subject the violator to remedies as authorized under G. S. 
153A-123 and G.S. 143-139.  Civil penalties shall be imposed in the amount of 
$200.00 per day until the violation has been remedied.  In addition to the civil 
penalty, or in the alternative, this ordinance may be enforced by injunction and 
order of abatement in the General Court of Justice.  Each day’s continuing 
violation of this ordinance is a separate and distinct offense. 
 
100.09  EFFECTIVE DATE 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon its ratification and adoption by the 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners. 
 
READ, CONSIDERED, PASSED, AND APPROVED at the regular meeting of the 
Board of Commissioners for Watauga County at which a quorum was present 
and which was held the ____ day of ______________, 2012. 
 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 
Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________(SEAL) 
Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

022112 BCC Meeting

129



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Time has been reserved to allow citizen comment to address the Board for any area of interest or 
concern. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

022112 BCC Meeting

130


	Approval of the Minutes
	Approval of the February 21, 2012, Agenda
	Proposed Contract with Trail Dynamics for Construction of a Bike Skills Area at Rocky Knob Park
	Sanitation Department Recycling Center’s Grant Application Request for Purchase of Forklift
	Budget Amendments
	Misc Admin - USDA Lease
	Misc Admin - Optimist Club Resolution
	Misc Admin - Announcements
	Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on the Proposed Watauga County Gated Community Ordinance
	Public Comment
	AGENDA 022112.pdf
	WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
	COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM




